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TIHm’teb States District Court

FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

VENUE: SAN FRANCISCO

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

v,
R /2 -pmd
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN, ADEBOLA

ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE, EDNA CALAUSTRO,
EDUARDO ABAD, and MELE SAAVEDRA,

DEFENDANT(S).

INDICTMENT

18 U.S5.C, §§ 1345 and 2 - Conspiracy to Commit Health Care Fraud;
18 U.8.C §§ 371 and 2 - Conepiracy to Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks:
18 U.5.C. §§ 1347 and 2 - Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Absiting;
18 U.S.C. § 982 and 21 U.5.C. § 853 - Criminal Forfsiture Allegation

A true bill.

ﬁmmzf 7@%7@

Foreman
Filed in open court this ___| ﬁ day of

_M%V

Bail, §

viaria Elena James
United States Chief Magistrate Judge
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AQ 257 (Rev. B/78)

BY: [] compLAINT [ ] INFORMATION [ ] INDICTMENT
SUPERSEDING

~——~ OFFENSE CHARGED —

CNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349 - Conspiracy fo
Engage in Health Care Fraud; CNT 2, 18 U.S.C.
§ 371 - Consp. to Receive and Pay Health Care
Kickbacks; CNTS 3-11, 18 U,8,C §§1347 and 2
- Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting

[[] Petty

D Minor

Misds-
meanor

m Felony
"PENALTY:
See Aftachment A

PROCEEDING )
Name of Complatntant Agency, or Person (&Titla, if any)
Federal Bures of Investigation / Office of Tspecior Generzl, Depattment af Houlth and

Human Services

person Is awaiting trial In anather Federal or State
Courl, give name of court

|:] district per (circle one) FRCrP 20, 21 or 40. Show
District

this is a reprosecution of
charges previously dismissed

which were dismissed on SHOW

motion of: DOCKET NO.
[] u.s. Aty ] Defense

this progecution relates fo a

pending case involving this same -

defendant MAGISTRATE

prior proceedings or appearanca(s) CASE NO,

hefore U.8. Magistrate regarding
this defendant were recorded unde

this person/proceeding Is transferred from another 1

Name and Cffice of Person
Furnishing Infarmation an

THIS FORM Melinda Haag

[7] us. Aty [[] Other U.S. Agancy

Name of Asst. .S, Alt'y
(If assignecd)}

Denise Marie Barton/Randy Luskey

|  PROCESS:

| [] SUMMONS {] NO PROCESS*

| Jf Summaons, complete following:

D Arralgnment D Initial Appearance
Defendant Address:

:
|

| N—

DEFENDANT INFORMATION RELATIVE TO A CRIMINAL ACTION - IN U.S. DISTRICT COURT |

Name of District Caurt, andfor Judge/Magistrate Location —
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

(— DEFENDANT - U.S,

’PATR]CK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN

DISTRICT COURT NUMBER
CR 12-0054 ISW

B

ot PR

~— DEFENDANT N

iS5 NOT IN CUSTODY

Has not baen arrested, pending outcome this proceeding.
1) Q If not detained give date any prior summons’ i
2) [:] |s a Fugltive

was aerved on above charges ;
3) [¢] 1s on Bail or Release from (show District)

 Notthern District of California

IS IN CUSTODY
4) D On this charge

5) [C] ©n another conviction
6) D Awaning 1rial an omner

Pwanns } [] Fed1 [ state

If answar fo (6} is "Yes", show namae of Institution

Has detainar D Yes } ' gi::?;te
2
beenflled? [ No filed
DATE OF Month/Day/Year
ARREST
Or... If Arresting Agency & Warrant were not
Month/Day/Year
DATE TRANSFERRED g

TO U.S. CUSTODY

- ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OR COMMENTS —-

[] WARRANT  Ball Amount:

*Whare defendant proviousty apprehended on complaint, no new summons
ar wanrant needed, since Magistrate has schaeduled araignment

Gomments:

D] This report amends AQ 257 previously submitted

DateTime:

Bafora Judgs:




Y

Case 4.:12-cr-00054-JSW Document 249 Filed 09/19/13 Page 3 of 27

ATTACHMENT A
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN

COUNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud

10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNT 2, 18 U.S.C. § 371, Conspiracy to Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks
5 years imprisonment, fine of $250,000, 3 years supervised release, $100 special
assessment

COUNTS 3-11, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Frand; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

ADEBOILA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE

COUNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud )
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised reteass, $100
special assessment

COUNTS 3-11, 18 U.8.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

~ EDNA CALAUSTRO

COUNT I, 18 UL.8.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNT 2, 18 ULS.C. § 371, Conspiracy to Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks
5 years imprisonment, fine of $250,000, 3 years supervised release, $100 special
assessment

COUNTS 3-11, 18 U,5,C, §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
gpecial assessment '

EDUARDO ABAD

COUNT 1, 18 U,S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNT 2, 18 U.S.C. § 371, Conspiracy to Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks
5 years imprisonment, fing of $250,000, 3 years supervised release, $100 special
assessment
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COUNTS 4-5, 10-12, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
_ gpecial assessment :

MELE SAAVEDRA

COUNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNTS 3, 6-9, 18 U.8.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Ffaud; Aiding am‘:l Abetting
[0 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment




/

> Case 4:12-cr-00054-JSW Document 249 Filed 08/19/13 Page 5 of 27

AQ 257 (Rev, 6/78)

DEFEN_DANT INFORMATION RELATIVE TO A CRIMINAL ACTION - IN U.S. DISTRICT COURT

BY: [] COMPLAINT [[] INFORMATION [/] INDICTMENT
[¢] suPERSEDING

~~—— QFFENSE CHARGED —

COUNT L, 18 U.5.C. § 1349 - Conspiracy to
Engage in Health Care Fraud; COUNTS 3-11, D Pedty
18 US.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; [ ] Minor
Aiding and Abetting Miscie-
maanar
@ Felony
PENALTY:
See Aitachment A
T T T T PROCEEDING a

Name of Complaintant Agancy, or Parson (&Titls, it any}
Federal Bureou of Investigation f Office of Inspector Genetal, Department of Heulth and

Human Services

0

persan is awaiting trial in another Federal or State
Court, give name of ¢court

|
i this person/proceading is transierred from another I

disirict per (clrcle one) FRCrP 20, 21 or 40, Show
Distriet

this is a reprosecution of
charges previously dismissed

0

which were dismissed on SHOW

motion of; DOCKET NO,
] us. atty [} Defense

this prosecution relates to a

pending case invalving this same  *

defendant . MAG‘STRATE

prior proceedings or appearanca(s) CASE NO.

before U.S. Magistrate regarding ’ i
; ihie defendant were recorded unde :

i —

Name and Qffice of Person

Fusnishing Information on . -
THIS FORM _Mclmda Haag

[¢] u.s. Ay [[] other U.s. Agancy

Nams of Asst. U.S, Atty
{if assigned)

Denise Marie Barton/Randy Luskey

| PROGESS:
[] summons [yl NO PROCESS*

if Summons, complete following:

[:I Artalgnment E] Initial Appearance

Defendant Address:

[

—
|
S

Name of District Court, andlor JudgelMaglstrate Locatlon —
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

’ADEBDLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE

Comments;

r----— DEFENDANT - U.S.

DISTRICT COURT NUMBER
CR 12-0054 JSW

v e DEFENDANT - \

IS NOT IN CUSTODY

Has not been arrested, pending outcome this pracesding.
1 D If not detained give date any prior summon:
2) |__—_| Is a Fugitive

was served on above charges
3) [¢] 1s on Bail or Retease from (show District)

Northern District of California

1S IN CUSTODY
4) D On this charge

5) [J on another conviction
6) Awaing inal on omner

v } [] Fea [:[ State
rharnac

If answer to (6) is "Yes", show name of instltution

Has detainer D Yes } gt:ze;:te
baen flled? D No flod
DATE OF Month/DayfYear
ARREST
Or... if Arrasting Agency & Warrant were nat
Month/Day/Year
DATE TRANSFERRED

TO U.S. CUSTODY

- - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OR COMMENTS

[_] WARRANT  Ball Amount:

*Where defondant previously apprehiended on complaint, no new summons
or warrant neaded, since Magistrate has schaduled arraignmant

D] This report amends AQ 257 previously submitted

DateiTime:

Befora Judge:
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ATTACHMENT A

PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN

COUNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of tivice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNT 2, 18 U.S.C. § 371, Conspiracy to Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks
5 years imprisonment, fine of $250,000, 3 years supervised release, $100 special
assessment

COUNTS 3-11, 18 U.8.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE

COUNT 1, 18 1).S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud

10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100 -

special assessment

COUNTS 3-11, 18 U.S.C, §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

LEDNA CALAUSTRO

COUNT 1, 18 U.8.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment ‘

COUNT 2, 18 U.S.C. § 371, Conspiracy to Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks
5 years imprisonment, fine of $250,000, 3 years supervised release, $100 special
assessment

COUNTS 3-11, 18 U.B.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

EDUARDO ABAD

COUNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy 1o Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNT 2, 18 U.S.C. § 371, Conspiracy to Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks
5 years imprisonment, fine of $250,000, 3 years supervised release, $100 special
assessment




-
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COUNTS 4-5, 10-12, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting

10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment :

MELE SAAVED

COUNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud

10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supeirvised release, $100
special assessment

COLINTS 3, 6-9, 18 U.S.C. 88 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetiing

10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years superwsed release, $100
special assessment




 PENALTY:

AQ 257 (Rev. 6/78)
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DEFENDANT INFORMATION RELATIVE TO A CRIMINAL ACTION - IN U.S. DISTRICT COURT

|

BY: [:] GOMPLAINT D INFORMATION m INDICTMENT 1 —— Name of IjlstrlutCnurt,andfurJudgalMaglstrataLocal[oﬁ —_

[¥] surersening
e OFFENSE CHARGEDR — "
COUNT 1, 13 US.C. § 1349 - Conspiracy to
Engage in Health Care Fraud; CNT 2, 18 U.S.C. D Petty
§ 371 - Consp. to Receive and Pay Health Care I:l Minor
Kickbacks; CNTS 3-11, 18 1J.5.C. §§ 1347 and Misda-
2 - Heslth Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting meanar
Felony

See Attachment A

(" 777 PROCEEDING
i Name of Complaintant Agency, or Person (&THe, if any)
Federal Burcay of Investigatian f Office of Inspeetor Genernl, Department of Health and

Human Scrvices

D person is awaiting trtal In another Federal or State
Court, give name of court

this personfproceeding Is transferred from another ;
district per [circle one} FRCrP 20, 21 or 40. Show
| District

this is a reprosecution of.
charges previously dismissed

I:l which wete dismissed on
motion of:

[] u.s. Atty [ ] Defense

this prosecution relates to a

pending cese invelving this sama
defandant

i prior proceedings or appearanca(s)

’ before U.8. Maglstrate regarding

this defandant were recorded under

SHOW
DOCKET NO.

MAGISTRATE
CASE NO.
!
\ - P
Name and Office of Parson
Furnishing Information on
THIS FORM

Melinda Haag
[¥] vs. Aty [[] Other U.S. Agency

Nama of Asst. 1.5, Aft'y
{if assignod)

Penise Marie Bartorn/Randy Luskey

PROCESS: -
[] suMmMONS [f] NO PROCESS*
If Summons, complete following:
D Arralgnment E] inltial Appesarance
Defendant Address:

—- ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OR COMMENTS —

GComments:

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

.

B

i

o~ DEFENDANT - U.S.

-

’ EDNA CALAUSTRO

DISTRICT COURT NUMBER
CR 12-0054 JSW

P —

—— DEFENDANT

IS NOT IN CUSTODY

Has not been arrested, pending outcoma this proceeding.
1) If not detained give date any prior summon
was served on above charges

2) [[] 18 & Fugltive
3) m Is an Bail or Release from (show District)

Northern District of California

IS IN CUSTODY
4} |:| On thls charge

5) [] ©n another conviction
&[] Awalng Mak on omer

7 U
rhamac } Fedl D State

If answer 10 (B} Is "Yes", show name of inslitutlon

[ S

1

Has detainer D Yes } gi::%s;te

baen filed? [_:_:] No ghve

DATE OF Month/Day/Year

ARREST

Or... if Arresting Agenay & Warrant were nat

Manth/DayfYear

DATE TRANSFERRED yiYea

TO U.S. CUSTODY

.

D] This repbrt amends AD 257 previously submilted

[_:] WARRANT  Bail Amount;

*“Whera defandant proviously apprehended on complaint, no naw summons
or warreit! nasdad, since Magisirate has scheduled arreignment

DatefTime:

Bafore Judge:

S
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ATTACHMENT A

PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN

COUNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNT 2, 18 U,8.C, § 371, Conspiracy to Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks
5 years imprisonment, fine of $250,000, 3 years supervised release, $100 special
assessment

COUNTS 3-11, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

- ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE

COUNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNTS 3-11, 18 UL.8.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Frand; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment '

EDNA CALAUSTRO

COUNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross pain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNT 2, I8 US.C. § 371, Conspiracy to Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks
5 years imprisonment, fine of $250,000, 3 years supervised release, $100 special
assessment

COUNTS 3-11, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

EDUARDO ABAD

COUNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNT 2, 18 U.S.C. § 371, Conspiracy to Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks
5 years imprisonment, fine of $250,000, 3 years supervised release, $100 special
assessment
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COUNTS 4-5, 10-12, 18 U.8.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting

10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross pain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

MELE SAAVEDRA

COUNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud

10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNTS 3, 6-9, 18 U.S.C, §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetiing

10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised refease, $100
special assessment




¢
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AQ 257 (Rav. 6/78)

DEFENDANT INFORMATION RELATIVE TO A CRIMINAL ACTION - IN U.S. DISTRICT COURT j

BY: [[] COMPLAINT [] INFORMATION [/] INDICTMENT : -

Name of District Gount, and/or Judgoe/Maglstrate Location ——-

v

i
SUPERSEDING NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
~~~— OFFENSE CHARGED —- 4
CNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349 - Consp. to Engage in . DEFENDANT -U.S, ﬁ; —
Health Care Fraud; CNT 2, 18 US.C§ 371 - [] Petty r )
Consp. to Receive and Pay Health Care [ Miner . ’ _
Kickbacks; CNTS 4-5, 10-12, 18 US.C. §§1347. ] Misde- | . | | CRUARDO ABAD
and 2 - Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting maanar |
[7] eelony DISTRICT COURT NUMBER
PENALTY: CR 12-D054 ISW
Sec Attachiment A
R ———
[ s e == ——— DEFENDANT “
PEER—.- PROGEEDING . ' IS NOT IN CUSTODY
{ Name of Complaintant Agency, or Person (8Title, If any) |y Has not baen arrested, pending outcome this proceeding.
| . Fedoral Bureau of Investigation / Office of Inspectar General, Repartment of Health and If not detained give date any prior summon
- : was served on above charges
urnan Scrvices !
persan is awaiting trla) in another Faderel or State : 2) D 1s a Fugitive

Court, give name of court
H

3) [¢] ts on Bail or Release from (show District)

l this parsani/proceading is transferred fram another
) district per (circte one) FRCrP 20, 21 or 40. Show

Northemn District of California

I District IS IN CUSTODY
4} D On this charge
this Is & reprosecution of 5§) I:I On another conviction .
1 charges previously dismissed Awaing 1rial on emner } Fedl Staty
which were dismissed on SHOW 8) D rhnmm? D D @
mation of: DOCKET NO. : I answer to {6)is "Yes", show nama of Institution i
[T us.atty[ ] Defense
this prosacution relates fo a . _
ending case invelving this same e oo
5afandgnl : ) Has datainer D Yas If "Yos
MAG'STRATE been filed? N give date
prior proceedings or appearance(s) CASE NO, ‘ - NO filad -
before U.S. Magistrate ragarding ﬂ’
' this defendant were recorded und DATE OF MontthayNaar
. - p— ARREST
NF?jTrﬁ ;:'\T: ?E}g?nf;ﬁ;ﬁ? Or... if Arresting Agency & Warrant were not
THgS :ORM Melinda Haag Manth/Day/Year
I8F —
7 ) Other U.S. A DATE TRANSFERRED
[/} us.awy [] OtherU.s. Agency | | Tous.cusToby |
Name of Asst, .S, Atty : e e
(if assigned)  Denise Marie Barton/Randy Luskey [[]] This report amencds AQ 25¥ previously submitted

[ PROCESS:
[] suMMONS [y] NO PROCESS*
If Summons, complete following:

Defendant Address:

.- - ——- ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OR COMMENTS s

] WARRANT  Bail Amount:

[:] Arraignmant L:j Inittal Appearance

*Whery defondant previously apprehended on conmydaint, no new summons
or warranf neaded, sihce Magistrate hies schedujed araignmerit

Date/Fime:

Before Judge:

_ Commenls;
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ATTACHMENT A
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN

COUNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Frand
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNT 2, 18 U,S.C. § 371, Conspiracy to Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks
5 years imprisonment, fine of $250,000, 3 years supervised release, $100 special
assessment

COUNTS 3-11, 1B U.S.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE

COUNT 1, 18 U.8.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/logs, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNTS 3-11, 18 U.S.C. §§ [347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised lelease $100
special assessment

EDNA CALAUSTRO

COUNT I, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNT 2, 18 U.S.C. § 371, Conspiracy to Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks
§ years imprisonment, fine of $250,000, 3 years supervised release, $100 special
assessment

COUNTS 3-11, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gam/toss 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

EDUARDO ABAD

COUNT I, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNT 2, 18 U.5.C. § 371, Conspiracy to Receive and Pay Health Care Kiclbacks
5 years imprisonment, fine of $250,000, 3 years supervised release, $100 special
assessment
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COUNTS 4-5, 10-12, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

MELE SAAVEDRA

COUNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNTS 3, 6-9, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting 7
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment
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lr_ DEFENDANT INFORMATION RELATIVE TO A CRIMINAL ACTION - IN U. 8. DISTRICT COURT J

BY: D COMPLAINT D INFORMATION !Z] INDICTMENT »~—  Name of Digtrict Caurt, andfor Judge/Magistrate Lacation ——-~
SUPERSEDING e NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

-~———- OFFENSE CHARGED — — —_— )
COUNT 1, 18 US.C. § 1349 - Conspiracy to — DEFENDANT - U.S. S
Engage in Health Care Fraud; COUNTS 3, 6-9, [ ] Petty f | )
18 U.S.C. §% 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Miner :
Aiding and Abetting L Misda- ’ MELE SAAVEDRA
. meaanar i
[l relony | | DISTRICT COURT NUMBER
CR 12-005
PENALTY: 4 I3W
See Attachment A
{ e e - - —— DEFENDANT ]
e e e £ PROEEEDING . 3 IS NOT IN CUSTODY {
i Name of Complaintant Agency, or Parson {&Tltle, if any) ST Has not been arrested, pending outcome this proceeding.
! Federal Bureaw of Investigatian / Office of Inspestor General, Depariment of Healtl and _ if not detalned glve date any prior summon
5 Mo Services was served on above charges
D persan s awaiting trlal in another Federal or State 2) [:l Is a Fugltive
Court, give name of court 3) [] Is on Ball or Release from (stow District)
Northern District of Californi
this person/proceading is transfarred from another 1 orthern [ alifornia
district per (circle one) FRCrP 20, 21 or 40. Show
| L gistrcl per | ) IS IN CUSTODY
4) [:l On thig cherga
this is a reprosecution of 5 5) D On another conviction
charges previously dismissed AWatung triai on omer } { ] Fedl State
which were dismissed on SHOW 6) D rharnec D !
motioln of: DOCKET NO. Hanswerto (6) is "Yes“. show nama of Institulion .
[T us.aity[ ] Defense
this proseculion relates to a , . . e
pending case nvolving this same = Yes ) "Yos”
defendant MAGISTRATE | : ];::nd,?,féﬁer 5 No } give date
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ATTACHMENT A
" PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN

COUNT i, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNT 2, 18 U.S.C. § 371, Conspiracy to Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks
5 years imprisonment, fine of $250,000, 3 years supervised release, $100 special
assessment

COUNTS 3-11, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE,

COUNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNTS 3-11, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $ 100
special assessment

EDNA CALAUSTRO

COUNT 1, 18 US.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 vears supervised relcase, $100
speeial assessment

COUNT 2, 18 U.S.C. § 371, Conspiracy to Receive and Pay Healih Care Kickbacks -
5 years imprisonment, fine of $250,000, 3 years supervised refease, $100 special
assessment

COUNTS 3-11, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

EDUARDO ABAD

COUNT 1, 18 U.8.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

COUNT 2, 18 U.S.C, § 371, Conspiracy to Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks
5 years imprisonment, fine of $250,000, 3 years supervised release, $100 special
assessment
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COUNTS 4-5, 10-12, 18 U.S.C., §§ 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
i0 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment

MELE. SAAVEDRA

COUNT 1, 18 U.S.C. § 1349, Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud
t0 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment '

COUNTS 3, 6-9, 18 U.S.C. §5 1347 and 2, Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting
10 years imprisonment, fine of twice the gross gain/loss, 3 years supervised release, $100
special assessment
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MELINDA HAAG (CABN 132612) e

United States Attorney
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, CR No, 12-0054 ISW

PlaintifT,

)
)
)
\A ) VIOLATIONS: 18 U.S.C. §§ 1349 and 2—
} Conspiracy to Commit Health Care Fraud;
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN, ) 18 U.S.C, §§ 371 and 2 — Conspiracy to
ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE, ) Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks; 18
EDNA CALAUSTRO, ) U.S.C. §§ 1347 and 2 — Health Care Fraud;
EDUARDO ABAD, and % Aiding and Abetting; 18 U.S.C. § 982 and
}
}
}
)
)

MELE SAAVEDRA, 21 U.S.C. § 853 — Criminal Forfeiture
Allegation
Defendants.

SAN FRANCISCO VENUE

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT
The Grand Jury charges: '
INTRODUCTORY ALLEGATIONS
At all times relevant to this Superseding Indictment:

The Medicare Program

1, The Medicare Program (“Medicare™) was a federal program that provided free or

below-cost health care benefits to certain individuals, primarily the elderly, blind, and disabled.

The benefits available under Medicare were prescribed by statute and by federal regulations

under the auspices of the United States Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS™),

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT
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through its agency, the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”). Individuals who
received benefits under Medicare were commonly referred to as Medicare “beneficiaries.” Each
Medicare beneficiary is issued a unique Medicare claim number,

2. Medicare was a “health care benefit program,” as defined by Title 18, United
States Code, Section 24(b). '

3, Part B of the Medicare Program was a medical insurance program that covered,
among other things, certain durable medical equipment (“DME”), including power wheelchairs
{("PWCs™).

4, For California beneficiaries, Medicare Part B insurance covering DME and related
health care benefits, items, and services was administered by Noridian Administrative Services,
LLC (“Noridian™), pursuant to a contract with CMS. Among Noridian’s responsibilities, it
received, evaluated, and paid the claims submitted to it by Medicare beneficiaries and suppliers
of health care items and services. _

‘5. Under Medicare’s rales and regulations, a licensed medical professional or entity
seeking to participate in and bill the Medicare program (a Medicare provider) had to apply for a
national provider identifier (“NPI”). DME companies, physicians, and other health care
providers that sought to participate in Medicare Part B and bill Medicare for the cost of DME and
related benefits, items, and services, were required to obtain a supplicr number. The supplier
number ﬁllowcd a DME company to submit claims for reimbursement to Medicare for the cost of
DME and related itcmé and services it supplied to beneficiaries.

6. To receive payment from Medicare, a DME company, using its supplier number,
would submit a health insurance claim form td a Medicare contractor. Medicare permitted DM
companies o submit a claim electronically or in hard copy. Medicare required DME companies
io provide certain information, including: (a) the Medicare beneficiary’s name; (b) the Medicare
beneficiary’s identification number; (c) the name and identification number of the doctor who
ordered the item or service that was the subject of the claim; (d) the health care benefits, items, or
services provided to the beneficiary; (e) the billing codes for those benefits, items, or services;

and (f) the date upon which the benefits, items, or services were provided,

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT 2
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7. Medicare, through Noridian, would generally pay a portion, usually 80%, of the
cost of the DME and related health care items and services if they were deemed medically

necessary and ordered by a licensed doctor or other qualified health care provider. The

remaining cost, generally 20%, known as the “co-pay,” was typically paid by a secondary

insurance plan, by state health care programs, or by the Medicare beneficiary, Payments under
Medicare Part B were often made directly to the DME company, For this to occur, the
beneficiary would assign the right of payment to the DME company or other health care provider.
Once such an assignment took place, the DME company or other Health care provider would
assuyme the responsibility for submitting claims to, and receiving payments from, Medicare.

8. Medicare providers agreed to abide by all Medicare laws, regulations, and

‘(| program instructions, and not to present or cause to be presented a false or fraudulent claim for

payment by Medicare or to submit claims with deliberate ignorance or reckless disregard of their
truth or falsity. Medicare providers also agree that payment of a claim by Medicare is
conditioned upon the claim and the underlying transaction complying with such Medicare laws,
regulations, and.program instructions, including but not limited to, the Federal anti-kickback
statute, and on the provider’s compliance with all the applicable conditions of participation in
Medicare,
Background of the Defendants

9. PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN (SOGBEIN) and ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE
ADEBIMPE (ADEBIMPE) were married and lived together in Santa Clarita, California.
SOGBEIN was the owner and operator of Debs Medical Distributqrs, Inc. (Debs), a DME
company located in Van Nuys, California. ADEBIMPE was the owner and operator of Dignity
Medical Supply LLC (Dignity), a DME company located in Santa Clarita, California. Both Debs
and Dignity had Medicare PINs and supplier numbers and were eligible to receive payments from
Medicare for DME supplied to beneficiaries. SOGBEIN, on behalf of Debs, and ADEBIMPE,
on behalf of Dignity, supplied PWCs and accessories, including armrests, elevating leg rests, and
rccl?m’ng back rests to Medicare beneficiaries in the San Francisco area and billed and received

payment from Medicare for those PWCs and accessories,

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT 3
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1,  Dr. EDNA CALAUSTRO, a resident of San Francisco, California, was a licensed
physician in the state of California who owned and worked at the Health Haven Medical Clinic
in San Francisco, California. CALAUSTRO was enrolled as a Medicare physician, was assigned
a -PIN, and was eligible to receive payments from Medicare. CALAUSTRO wrote prescriptions
for PWCs and accessories for Medicare beneficiaries in the San Francisco area and provided
those prescriptions to SOGBEIN and ADEBIMPE, knowing that SOGBEIN and ADEBIMPE,
acting on behalf of Debs and Dignity, billed and received payments from Medicare based on
those prescriptions.

' 11, EDUARDO ABAD and MELE SAAVEDRA were residents of San Francisco,
California. ABAD and SAAVEDRA worked as recruiters tor CALAUSTRO, SOGBEIN, and
ADEBIMPE to find Medicare beneficiaries who would be eligible to receive a PWC,

QVERVIEW OF THE CONSPIRACIES AND SCHEME TQ DEFRAUD

12,  Beginning no later than on or about December 9, 2006, and continning through at
least July 26, 2011, the defendants conspired to defraud Medicare byrfraudulently prescribing
PW(Cs to Medicare beneficiaries who did not need them, and in many cases, who did not even
want them, in order to enrich thems.elves. As part of the conspiracies and scheme to defraud, the

defendants (1) recruited Medicare beneficiaries to receive the PWCs; (2) prepared false and

fraudulent documentation to support claims to Medicare for PWCs and accessories; (3) paid and |

received cash kickbacks for identification of Medicare beneficiaries and for writing prescriptions
for PWCs and accessories (4) submitted over $2.4 million in false and fraudulent claims to
Medicare for PWCs and accessories that were based on transactions that did not comply with the
Medicare laws, regulations, and program instructions and that were not eligible for payment
under Medicare rules and regulations; and (5) reccived and used the proceeds of the fraud for
their own personal benefit and for the use and benefit of others.

7 |

i
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MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACIES AND SCHEME TO DEFRAUD
13. SOGBEIN, as a sole proprietor and on behalf of Debs, and ADEBIMPE, on behalf
of Dignity, enrolled as Medicare providers and obtained NPIs and supplier numbers to submit

claims for payment to Medicare, .

14.  SOGBEIN paid and CALAUSTRO accepted cash in exchange for her preparation

1 of prescriptions for PWCs for Medicare Beneﬁciaries and other documents required by Medicare.

CALAUSTRO knew that SOGBEIN and ADEBIMPE needed those prescriptions in order to
submit false and fraudulent claims to Medicare on behalf of the beneficiaries receiving PWCs.

15. SOGBEIN and CALAUSTRO paid ABAD and SAAVEDRA cash for referring
Medicare beneficiaries in whose names SOGBEIN and ADEBIMPE submitted false and
fraudulent claims to Medicare for PWCs. |

16.  SOGBEIN and ADEBIMPE knowingly prepared, and caused to be prepared, false
and fraudulent documentation in support of the claims submitted to Medicarc for PWCs and
accessories. _

17. SOGBEIN and ADEBIMPE knowingly submitted claims to Medicare for PWCs
and accessories knowing that the claims did not did not comply with the Medicare laws,
regulations, and program instructions, including but not limited to, the Federal anti-kickback
statute.

18. Between December 9, 2006, and July 26, 2011, SOGBEIN and ADEBIMPE
submitted over $2.4 million in false and fraudulent Medicare claims for PWCs.

19.  Between January 17, 2007, and July 26, 2011, SOGBEIN, in his individual
capacity and on behalf of Debs, and ADEBIMPE, on behalf of Dignity, received over of $1.2
million in payments from Medicare as a result of the false and fraudulent claims they submitted.
COUNT ONE: (18 U.S.C. §§ 1349 and 2 — Conspiracy to Commit Health Care Fraud)

20,  The allegations of Paragraphs One through Nineteen of this Indictment are

re-alleged and incorporated as if set forth fully here.

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT 3
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21.  Beginning on a date unknown to the Grand Jury, but no later than on or about
December 9, 2006, and continuing through at least July 26, 2011, both dates being approximate
and inclusive, in the Northern District of California and elsewhere, the defendints,

PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN,
ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE,
EDNA CALAUSTRO,
EDUARDO ABAD, and
MELE SAAVEDRA,

-and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, did knowingly conspire and agree with one

another to execute, and to attempt to execute, a material scheme and artifice (1) to defraud a
heaith care benefit program affecting commerce, as defined in Title 18, United States Code,
Section 24(b}, namely, Medicare, and (2) to obtain, by means of materially false and fraudulent
pretenses, representations, and promises, money owned by and under the custody and control of”
Medicare, all in connection with the delivery of and payment for health care benefits, items, and
services, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1347.

Allin violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sectiéns 1349 and 2,
COUNT TWQ: (18 U.S.C. §§ 371 and 2 — Conspiracy to Solicit and Receive Kickbacks

Involving a Federal Health Care Program)

22.  The allegations of Paragraphs One through Nineteen of this Indictment are
re-alleged and incorporated as if set forth fully here. |

23.  Beginning on a date unknown to the Grand Jury, but no later than on or about
December 9, 2006, and continuing through at least July 26, 2011, both dates being approximaie
and inclusive, in the Northern District of California and elsewhere, the defendants

"PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN,
EDNA CALAUSTRO,
EDUARDO ABAD, and
MELE SAAVEDRA,

and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, did willfully and knowingly conspire and
agree to commit an offense against the United States by knowingly and willfully soliciting, -
receiving, offering, and paying remuneration, specifically cash kickbacks, ditectly and indirectly,

overtly and covertly, in return for referring an individual to a person for the furnishing and

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT 6




L =T - - S I = O ¢ O BT B - B

[
(=]

il
12
13
14
15
16
17
is
19

20

21

22
23

24

25

26
27
28

Case 4:12-cr-00054-JSW Document 249 Filed 09/19/13 Page 23 of 27

arranging for the furnishing of any item and service for which payment may be made in whole or
in part by a federal health care program, namely Medicare, in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1320a~
To(b)Y(1)(A) and 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(b)(2)(A).

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 371 and 2,

OVERT ACTS COMMITTED IN FURTHERANCE OF THE CONSPIRACY

24.  Infurtherance of the conspiracy alleged in Count Two and to accomplish its
purpose and object, at least onc of the conspirators committed, or caused to be committed, in the
Northern District of California, the following overt acts, among others:

25. On dates between December 9, 2006, and continuing through at least July 26,
2011, SOGBEIN offeted to pay and did pay CALAUSTRO, ABAD, and SAAVEDRA
remuneration, specifically cash kickbacks, in return for locating Medicare beneficiaries and
preparing and providing prescriptions for PWCs and preparing other documents required by
Medicare for which payment was made in whole or in part by Medicare.

26. - On dates between December 9, 2006 and continuing through at least July 26,
2011, CALAUSTRO, SAAVEDRA, and ABAD did solicit and receive remuneration,
specifically cash kickbacks, from SOGBEIN in return for ]ocatiﬁg Medicare beneficiaries and
preparing and providing prescriptions for PWCs and preparing other documents required by
Medicare for wh‘ich payment was made in whole or in part by Medicare.

27, On or about December 16, 2011, CALAUSTRO and SAAVEDRA met with C.R.
and F.R., husband and wife, and obtained their Medicare identification numbers, numbers that
are used to submit claims to Medicare.

28.  Onor about December 20, 2011, CALAUSTRO signed prescriptions for PWCs
for C.R, and F.R, that were supplied by Dignity.

29.  Onor about January 4, 2011, SOGBEIN delivered the PWCs to C.R. and F.R,

30. On or about March 30, 2011, CALAUSTRO and ABAD met with [..H. and
obtained her Medicare identification number,

31.  Onor about April 4, 2011, CALAUSTRO signed a prescription for a PWC for
L.H. that was supplied by Dignity.

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT . 7
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32.  Onorabout April 28, 2011, ABAD delivered the PWC to L.H."s home,

33, On or about April 25, 2011, CALAUSTRO met with C.L. and obtained his
Medicare identification number. |

34.  Onorabout April 30, 2011, CALAUSTRO signed prescriptions for a PWC for
C.L. that was supplied by Dignity.

35,  Onorabout May 7, 2011, ABAD received C.L..>s PWC from SOGBEIN and
ABAD thereafter gave C.L. the PWC, _

36. On or about April 26, 2011, CALAUSTRO met with Z.L. and obtained her
Medicare claim number,

- 37. On or about April 30, 2011, CALAUSTRO signed prescriptions for a PWC for
Z.1.. that was supplied by Dignity. |

38. On or about May 7, 2011, SOGBEIN delivered the PWC to Z.L.

COUNTS THREE THROUGH TWELVE: (18 U,S.C. §§ 1347 and 2 — Health Care Fraud &
Aiding and Abetting)

39.  The allegations of Paragraphs One through Nineteen of this Indictment are re-
alleged and incorporated herein as if set forth fully here.

40, On or ahout the dates set forth below, in the Northern District of California, the
defendants specified below did knowingly and intentionally execute and attempt to execute a
material scheme and artifice (1) to defraud a health care benefit program affecting commerce, as
defined in Title 18, Uhited States Code, Section 24(b}, namely, Medicare, and (2) to obtain, by
means of materially false and fraudulent prefenses, representations, and promises, money owned
by and under the custody and control of Medicare, all in connection with the delivery of and
payment for health care benefits, itemns, and services, and did for the purpose of executing and
attempting to execuie said fraudulent scheme, knowingly and willfully submit and cause to be
submitted to Medicare, and to be paid by Medicare, the following false and fraudulent claims for
PWCs:

I

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT. 8
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3 -| SOGBEIN, AV, Drignity $4,500 11/20/08

$3,218.96
ADEBIMPE,
CALAUSTRO,
SAAVEDRA
4 SOGBEIN, M.C. Dignity $4,500 414/10 $2,913.12
ADEBIMPE, and
CALAUSTRO, Debs
ABAD
5 SOGBEIN, v.C Dignity $4,500 2/19/10 $2,804.16
ADEBIMPE, and
CALAUSTRO, Debs
ABAD '
6 SOGBEIN, JLV. Dignity $4,500 8/21/09 $2,913.12
ADEBIMPE,
CALAUSTRO,
SAAVEDRA
) SOGBEIN, E.M. Dignity $4,500 3/512010 $2,789.12
ADEBIMPE,
CALAUSTRO,
SAAVEDRA
8 SOGBEIN, CR. Dignity $6,160 /1172011 | $2,005.13
ADEBIMPE, : (otal) /7 | 72272011 | (total) / 3
CALAUSTRO, claims for , payinents of
SAAVEDRA $880 $435.55 and 4
payments of
$174.62
9 SOGBEIN, F.R. Dignity $6,125 2/8/11- $1,955.02
ADEBIMPE, (total} / 7 7/22/11 (tofal) / 3
CALAUSTRO, claims for | payments of
SAAVEDRA $875 $433.70 and 4
payments of
$173.48
10 SOGBEIN, L.H. Dignity 32,640 5/19/11- $1,637.07
ADEBIMPE, (total} /3 7/20/11 (total) / 3
CALAUSTRO, ¢laims for payments of
ABAD $BRO $545.69

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT ' 9
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SOGBEIN, L. Dignity $2,640 5123111 $1,637.07
ADEBIMPE, : (otal) /3 | 7720011 (total) / 3
CALAUSTRO, chaims for payments of
ABAD $880 $545.69

12 SOGBEIN, ZL. Dignity $2,623 5/23/11- $1,301.10
ADEBIMPE, {total) /3 7720111 (total) /3
CALAUSTRO, claims for payments of
ABAD £875 $433.70

Each in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1347 and 2.
FORFEITURE ALLEGATION: (18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(7) — Health Care Fraud Forfeiture)

41,  The factual allegations contained in Paragraphs One through Forty are realleged
and incorporated as if fully set forth here for the purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to Title
18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(7).

42, Upon a conviction of any of the offenses alleged in Counts One through Twelve,
the defendants, |
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN,
ADEBOLA ADEBIMPE,
EDNA CALAUSTRO,
EDUARDO ABAD, and
MELE SAAVEDRA,
shall forfeit to the United States, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(7), all
right, title and interest in property, real and personal, that constitutes or is derived from, dircctly
or indirectly, from gross proceeds traceable to the commission of the offense, including but not

limited to a sum of money equal to the gross proceeds obtained as a result of the offense.

43.  Ifany of the property, as a result of any act or omission of the defendants:

a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

b. has been transferred or sold 1o, or deposited with, a third party;

c. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court;

d. has been substantially diminished in value; or

e has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided without
difficulty,

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT 10
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the United States of America shall be entitled to forfeiture of substitute property pursuant to Title
21, United States Code, Section 853(p), as incorporated by Title 18, United States Code, Section
982(bY(1). , '

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 982(a)(7), 1347, 1349; Title 28,
United States Code, Section 2461; and Rule 32.2 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure.

DATED; ‘

o, 19, A0/3 A TRUE BILL
MELINDA HAAG
United States Attorney

2D 2T (o
J, DOUGLAS WILSON

Chief, Criminal Division

{Approved as to form: M&.Lu_ Y '%
AUSA Denise Marie Barton
AUSA Randy Luskey

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT 11
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

Case No. 12-cr-00054-J1SW-1,2, 4

v. | VERDICT FORM
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN,

ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE and
EDUARDQ ABAD,

Defendants.

COUNT ONE
Count One of the Superseding Indictment charges Defendants PATRICK ADEBOWALE
SOGBEIN, ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE, and EDUARDO ABAD, with conspiracy to
commit health care fraud in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1349 and 2.

We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find the defendants listed below:

GUILTY NOT .GUILTY
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN v~
ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE vl ' o
EDUARDO ABAD | .,/ |

of conspiracy 1o commit health care fraud as charged in Count One of the Superseding Indictment.

COUNT TWO

Count Two of the Superseding Indictment charges Defendants PATRICK. ADEBOWALE
SOGBEIN and FDUARDO ABAD with conspiracy to solicit or receive kickbacks involving a
federal health care program in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 371 and 2.

We, the jury in the above-captioned caﬁse, unanimously find the defendants listed below:
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NOT GUILTY

@
-

UILT
iy

PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN

<

EDUARDO ABAD

of conspiracy to solicit or receive kickbacks involving a federal health care program as charged in
Count Two of the Superseding Indiciment.
COUNT THREE

Count Three of the Superseding Indictment charges Defendants PATRICK. ADEBOWALE
SOGBEIN and ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE with health care fraud and aiding and '
abetting health care fraud in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1347 and 2.

We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find the defendants listed below:

_ GUILTY NOT GUILTY
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN v
ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE | _‘_{___

of health care fraud as charged in Count Three of the Superseding Indictment.

COUNT FOUR

Count Four of the Superseding Indictment charges Defendants PATRICK ADEBOWALE
SOGBEIN and ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE with health care fraud and aiding and
abetiing health care fraud in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1347 and 2.

We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find the defendants listed below:

GUILTY NOT GUILTY
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN v/ )
ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE v

of health care fraud as charged in Count Four of the Superseding Indictment.
COUNT FIVE
Count Five of the Superseding Indictment charges Defendants PATRICK ADEBOWALE
SOGBEIN and ADEROLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE with health care fraud and aiding and

abetting health care fraud in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1347 and 2.
y
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We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find the defendants listed below:

GUILTY . NOT GUILTY
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN v
ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE v

of health care fraud as charged in Count Five of the Superseding Indictment.
COUNT SIX .
C;)unt Six of the Superseding Indictment charges Defendants PATRICK ADEBOWALE
SOGBEIN and ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE with health care fraud and aiding and
abetting health care fraud in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1347 and 2.

We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find the defendants Tisted below:

GUILTY NOT GUILTY
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN \/
ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE v

of health care fraud as charged in Count Six of the Superseding Indictment,

COUNT SEVEN

Count Seven of the Superseding Indictment charges Defendants < PATRICK
ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN and ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE with health care fraud and
aiding and abetting health care fraud in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1347
and 2,

We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find the defendants listed below:

_ GUILTY NOT GUILTY
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN \/
ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE ;

of health care fraud as charged in Count Seven of the Superseding Indictment.

COUNT EIGHT

Count Eight of the Superseding Indictment charges Defendants PATRICK ADEBOWALE
SOGBEIN and ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE with health care fraud and aiding and

abetting health care fraud in violation of Title 18, United Siates Code, Sections 1347 and 2.
3
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We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find the defendants listed below:
GUILTY NOT GUILTY
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN

<US

ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE

of health care fraud as charged in Count Eight of the Superseding Indictment.

COUNT NINE

Count Nine of the Superseding Indictment éhargcs Defendants PATRICK ADEBOWALE
SOGBEIN and ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE with health care fraud and aiding and
abetting health care fraud in violation of T_itle 18, United States Code; Sections 1347 and 2.

We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find the defendants listed below:

GUILTY NOT GUILTY
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN ____‘-{__
ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE \/

of health care fraud as charged in Count Nine of the Superseding Indictment.
COUNT TEN
Count Ten of the Superseding Indictment charges Defendants PATRICK ADEBOWALE
SOGBEIN and ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE with health care fraud and aiding and
abetting health care fraud in ;fiolation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1347 and 2,
We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find the defendants lisied below:
GUILT NOT GUILTY
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN -
ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE AL B
of health care fraud and aiding and abetting health care fraud as charged in Count Ten of the

Superseding Indictment.

COUNT ELEVEN

Count Eleven of the Superseding Indictment charges Defendants PATRICK
ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN, ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE, and EDUARDO ABAD with

health care fraud and aiding and abetting health care fraud in vielation of Title 18, United States
4
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Code, Sections 1347 and 2,

We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find the defendants listed below:

GUILTY NOT GUILTY
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN v~
ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE v

EDUARDO ABAD i

of health care fraud as charged in Count Eleven of the Superseding Indictment.

COUNT TWELVE

Count Twelve of the Superseding Indictment charges Defendants PATRICK
ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN, ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE, and EDUARDO ABAD V;fith
hcaith care fraud and aiding and abefting health care fraud in violation of Title 18, United States
Code, Sections 1347 and 2,

We, the jury in the above-captioned cause, unanimously find the defendant listed below:

GUILTY NOT GUILTY
PATRICK ADEBOWALE SOGBEIN Ry
ADEBOLA ADEFUNKE ADEBIMPE ﬂ\/_
EDUARDO ABAD v

of health care fraud as charged in Count Twelve of the Superséding Indictment.

DATED: Zk f,{ , 2013
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4) Judgment in Criminal Case

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

Eduardo Abad

THE DEFENDANT:

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
Northern District of California

V.

TISM Number:

™ pleaded guilty to couni(s):

™ pleaded nolo contendere to count(s):

¥ was found guilty on count(s): 1,2, 11, and 12 after a pica of not guilty.

The defendant is adjudicated

vilty of these offenses:

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE

USDC Case Number: CR-12-00054-004 JSW
BOP Case Number; DCAN312CR00054-004
16891-111

Defendant’s Attorney: Christopher Canon

which was accepted by the court.

Title & Section ‘| Natuare of Offense Offense Ended Couni
18 U.5.C. § 1349 Conspiracy to Engage in Health Care Fraud 7/26/2011 1

18 US.C. § 371 Conspiracy to Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks 7/26/2011 2.

18 U.S.C. §§ 1347 and 2 Healih Care Fraud; Aiding and Abetting 7/20/2011 11

18 U.S.C. §§ 1347 and 2 Health Care Fraud; Aiding and Abeiting 7/20£2011 12

The defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through _6 ofthis judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing

Reform Act of 1984,

¥ The defendant has been found not guilty on count(s): 4, 5, and 10

7 Count(s)

It is ordered that the defendant must notify the United States attorney for this district within 30 days of any change of name,
residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special assessments imposed by this judgment are fully paid. 1f ordered

is/are dismissed on the motion of the United States,

to pay restitution, the defendant must notify the court and United States attorney of material changes in economic circumstances.

6/17/2014

D&;Im ogition of udgmenyf

of

Sl fung .hid T '
H Ee effrey S. While
} itedWStates Mistrict Judge

Name & Title of Judge

6/18/2014

Date
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DEFENDANT: Eduardo Abad Judgment - Page 2 of 6
CASE NUMBER: CR-12-00054-004 JSW

IMPRISONMENT
The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Burcau of Prisons to be imprisoned for a total term of:
Twelve (12) months and one (1} day. This term consists of terms of 12 months and 1 day on each of Counts 1, 2, 11, and 12,
all counts to be served concurrently.
(v The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons:
The defendant to be housed at the Atwater BOP Facility, and if not there, then a minimal security camp prison with a medical

facility capable of treating him,
[77  The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal. The appearance bond is hereby exonerated.

[™  The defendant shall surrender to the United States Marshal for this district:

™ at any/pm on (no later than 2:00 pm).
[~ as notified by the United States Marshal.

The appearance bond shall be deemed exonerated upon the surrender of the defendant.

1 The defendant shall surrender for service of sentence at the institution designated by the Bureau of Prisons:

W at 12:00 pm on 8/19/2014 (no later than 2:00 pm).
™ as notified by the United States Marshal.

i~  asnotified by the Probation or Preirial Services Office.

The appearance bond shall be deemed exonerated upon the surrender of the defendant.

RETURN

I have executed this judgment as follows:

Defendant delivered on to at

, with a certified copy of this judgment,

UNITED STATES MARSHAL

By

DEPUTY UNITED STATES MARSHAL
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CASE NUMBER: CR-12-00054-004 JSW

'SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon'release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of: Three (3) years. This term consists of
terms_of three years on each of Counts 1. 2, 11, and 12, all such terms to run concurrently.

The defendant must report to the probation office in the district to which the defendant is released within 72 hours of release from the
custody of the Bureau of Prisons.

The defendant shall not commit another federai, state or local crime.

The defendant shall not unlawfully possess a controlled substance, The defendant shall refrain from any unlawful use of a controlled
substance. The defendant shall submit to one drug test within 15 days of release from imprisonment and at least two periodic drug
tests thereafter, as determined by the court.

[v  The above drug testing condition is suspended, based on the court’s determination that the defendant poses a low risk of future
substance abuse. (Check, if applicable.} )

!  The defendant shall not possess a firearm, ammunition, destructive device, or any other dangerous weapon. (Check, if applicable.)

{¥i  The defendant shall cooperate in the collection of DNA as directed by the probation officer. (Check, if applicable.)

{™  The defendant shall comply with the requirements of the Sex Offender Registration and Notification Act (42 U.S.C, § 16901, et
seq.) as directed by the probation officer, the Bureau of Prisons, or any state sex offender registration agency in which he or she
resides, works, is a student, or was convicted of a qualifying offense. (Check, if applicable.)

{7 The defendant shall participate in an approved program for domestic vielence. (Check, if applicable.)

If this judgment imposes a fine or restitution, it is a condition of supervised release that the defendant pay in accordance with
the Schedule of Payments sheet of this judgment,

The defendant must comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted by this court as well as with any additional
conditions on the attached page.

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

8] The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer;

2) The defendant shall report to the probation officer and shall submit a truthful and complete written report within the first five
days of each month; ’

3) The defendant shall answer fruthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation
officer; _

4) The defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities;

5) The defendant shall work regularly at a lawful occupation, unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or
other acceptable reasons;

6) The defendant shall notify the probation officer at least ten days prior to any change in residence or employment;

0)] The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute, or administer any

-~ controlled substance or any paraphernalia related to any controlled substances, except as prescribed by a physician;

8) The defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or administered;

)] The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity and shali not associate with any person
convicted of a felony, unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer;

10) The defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit
confiscation of any contraband observed in plain view of the probation officer;

11) The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law
enforcement officer;

12) The defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without

the permission of the court; and :

13) As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the
defendant’s criminal record or personal history or charactetistics and shall permit the probation officer io make such
notifications and to confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement.
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SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

1. The defendant shall pay any restitution and special assessment that is imposed by this judgment and that remains unpaid at the
commencement of the term of supervised release.

2. The defendant shall not open any new lines of credit and/or incur new debt without the prior permission of the probation officer.

3. The defendant shall provide the probation officer with access to any financial information, including tax returns, and shall authorize
the probation officer to conduct credit checks and abtain copies of income tax returns.

4. The defendant shall submit his person, residence, office, vehicle, or any property under his control to a search. Such a search shall
be conducted by a United States Probation Officer at a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, based upon reasonable suspicion
of contraband or evidence of a violation of a condition of release. Failure to submit to such a search may be grounds for revocation;
the defendant shall warn any residents that the premises may be subject to searches.

5. The defendant shall not have contact with any codefendant in this case, namely Patrick Sogbein, Mele Saavedra, Edna Calaustro,
and Adebola Adebimpe.

6. The defendant shall cooperate in the collection of DNA as directed by the probation officer.

7. The defendant shall not own or possess any firearms, ammunition, destructive devices, or other dangerous weapons.
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CRIMINAL MONETARY PENALTIES

The defendant must pay the total criminal monetary penalties under the schedule of payments.

Assessment Fine Restitution
TOTALS $ 400 Waived $100,000

[ The determination of restitution is deferred until - An Amended Judgment in a Criminal Case (AO 245C) will be
entered after such determination. . :

#i  The defendant must make restitution (including community restitution) to the following payees in the amount listed below, .

If the defendant makes a partial payment, each payee shall receive an approximately proportioned payment, unless specified
otherwise in the priority order or percentage payment column below, However, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3664(i}, all
nonfederal victims must be paid before the United States is paid.

Name of Payee Total Loss Restitution Ordered Priority or Percentage
Medicare; $100,000 _ $100,000

Atin: Veronica Moore;

CMS, Division of Accounting;

PO BOX 7520; Baltimore, MD

21207-0520

TOTALS $100,000.00 $100,000.00

[ Restitution amount ordered pursuant fo plea agreement $

[T The defendant must pay interest on restitution and a fine of more than $2,500, unless the restitution or fine is paid in full before

the fifteenth day after the date of the judgment, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(f). All of the payment options on Sheet &6 may be
subject to penaliies for delinquency and default, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(g).
[7:  The court determined that the defendant does not have the ability to pay interest and it is ordered that:

[~ theinterest requirement is waived for the fine/restifution,
[ the interest requirement is waived for the fine/restitution is modified as follows:

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS

Having assessed the defendant’s ability to pay, payment of the total criminal monetary penalties is due as follows™:

* Findings for the total amount of losses are required under Chapters 1094, 110, 1104, and 113A of Title (8 for offenses committed on er alter September 13, 1994, but
before April 23, 1996.
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A

Lump sum payment of $100.400.00 due immediately, balance due

™ not later than , Or
[ inaccordance with [“c, I'Dyor T7Eandlor [ F below)or

Payment to begin immediately (may be combined with [ ¢, [:D,or [ :F below)or

Payment in equal (e.g., weekly, monthly, quarterly) installments of over a period of

(e.g., months or years), to commence (e.g., 30 or 60 days) after the date of this judgment; or
Payment in equal (e.g., weekly, monthly, quarterly) installments of over a period of

(e.g., months or years), to commence (e.g., 30 or 60 days) after release from imprisonment to a
term of supervision; or
Payment during the term of supervised release will commence within (e.g., 30 or 60 days) after release from

imprisonment. The court will set the payment plan based on an assessment of the defendant’s ability to pay at that time; or

Special instructions regarding the payment of criminal monetary penalties:

When incarcerated, payment of criminal monetary penalties are due during imprisonment at the rate of not less than $25
per quarter and payment shall be through the Bureau of Prisons Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. Criminal
monetary payments shall be made to the Clerk of U.S. District Court, 450 Golden Gate Ave., Box 36060, San Francisco,
CA 94102, at a rate no less than $100 per month commencing 60 days after release from custody, The defendant’s
restitution and forfeiture obligations shall be paid jointly and severally with his co-defendants. However, the defendant
will not be made joint and several on the co-defendants’ judgments in regard to restitution and forfeiture.

Unless the court has expressly ordered otherwise, if this judgment imposes imprisonment, payment of criminal monetary penalties is
due during imprisonment. All criminal monetary penalties, except those payments made through the Federal Bureaun of Prisons’

Inmate Financial Responsibility Program, are made to the clerk of the court.

The defendant shall receive credit for all payments previously made toward any criminal monetary penaltiés imposed.

{¥: Joint and Several

Case Number - _ Total Amount Joint and Several Corresponding Payce,
Defendant and Co-Defendant Names Amount ) if appropriate
{including defendant number) '

12CRO0054-001/Patrick Sogbein $1,577,426 $100,000 | Medicare
12CR00054-002/Adebola Adebimpe $1,019,937 $100,000 | Medicare

[~ The defendant shall pay the cost of prosecution.

[
I

The defendant shall pay the following court cost(s):

The defendant shall forfeit the defendant’s interest in the following property to the United States:
$100,000, which will be joint and several with Patrick Sogbein, Adebola Adebimpe, Edna Calaustra, and Mele Saavedra.
The Court gives notice that this case involves other defendants who may be held jointly and severally liable for payment of all or

part of the restitution ordered herein and may order such payment in the future, but such future orders do not affect the
defendant’s responsibility for the full amount of the restitution ordered.

* Payments shall be applied in the following order: (1) assessment, (2) restitution pringipal, (3) restitution interest, {4) fine principal,
(8) fine interest, (6) comtmunity restitulion, (7) penalties, and (8} costs, including cost of prosecution and court costs.




